
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
* Section 7 - List of Acronyms and Annotated Agenda 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 



 



 



 

 

 



Action Who Status Due by Comment

FEBRUARY

APRIL

AP08/15 New Health and Safety policies (for Council function and staff function) and a Risk Register to be developed and then added to the Governance 

Manual.

Jordan In progress Dec-15 Briefing Dec '15; Policy Feb '16

JUNE

AP18/15: A brief report to be prepared on measuring, transformations and prioritisation of initiatives for the joint .nz strategy Jay/Debbie In progress Feb-16 Deferred to February 2016

AP20/15: Draft .nz Framework Policy planned to be be presented at the October Council meeting. Jordan In progress Feb-16 Deferred to February 2016

AUGUST

OCTOBER

AP30/15 Jordan to look into the reporting requirements for NZRS regarding the segmentation of costs for delivering the core functions of the company, and 

discuss with Jay.

Jordan In progress May-16 Review Reporting Policy in 2016

AP31/15 Jordan to discuss with the subsidiaries CE regarding adding SoE review in each company’s quarterly report. Jordan In progress May-16 Review Reporting Policy in 2016

AP34/15 CE to explore options on how to support the Kiwicon event. Jordan In progress Feb-16 Included in the Community Programmes update

AP35/15 President to write to AUDA Board Chair seeking a Board-level dialogue between AU and NZ on a range of Internet Governance matters including 

ICANN accountability to further mutual understanding of each other positions.

President In progress Feb-16

DECEMBER

AP36/15 Maria to update the register of interests as per above changes. Maria Complete Feb-16

AP37/15 Maria to note and add the missing action point for Jamie (relating to RN88/15 – letter to AUDA) in the action point register. Maria Complete Feb-16 (refer to AP35/15)

AP38/15 Add graph and percentage of people rejoining in the membership report. Maria Complete Feb-16

AP39/15 Jordan to speak with Barry/Dean as to whether they can give a briefing on the GCSB issue at the February Council meeting. Jordan In progress Feb-16 Broader member briefing still to come

AP40/15 Staff to seek legal advice on the liability issues for Council in regards to the new Health & Safety legislation, and check how these responsibilities 

relate to insurance.

Mary In progress Feb-16

AP41/15 CE to prepare a draft governance policy relating to document confidentiality for consideration at the February meeting and report back on 

implementation options.

Jordan Complete Feb-16 Paper included in Feb Council papers

AP42/15 CE or President to email members the summary of the Business Dev Strategy Policy discussion; update the strategy and policy about transparency, 

objects alignment, and outputs of discussion; and explicitly discuss with members at the meetups in January.

Jordan In progress Feb-16

AP43/15 CE to commence public consultation on the draft .nz Framework Policy as per the PDP, after the New Year. Jordan In progress Feb-16

AP44/15 President/CE to respond to NZRS letter (re additional Tech Research staff) as per discussion at this meeting, preferably by email. Jordan/President Complete Feb-16 Jordan sent a reply via email to NZRS on 21 Dec

AP45/15 Jordan & Jay to discuss public reporting for Business Development by January. Jordan/Jay/Debbie Complete Feb-16

AP46/15 Mary to circulate a copy of the presentation from Deloitte to Council. Mary Complete Feb-16

AP47/15 Jordan/Ellen to draft communications plan for NetHui 2016 for discussion at the February meeting. Jordan/Ellen In progress Feb-16 Paper included in Feb Council papers

Action Point Register



 

 

 



 

 

 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

February
2016

December
2015

October
2015

August
2015

 



 

 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

February
2015

December
2014

October
2014

August
2014



 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

     

 

 

 

 

 

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Cfn_JaNpLsDvUVfYngDANPRneQc_l8-Boinr89XjG60/edit
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Cfn_JaNpLsDvUVfYngDANPRneQc_l8-Boinr89XjG60/edit


 
 
InternetNZ Member Meetups ­ February 2016 (notes of points from staff & member participants ­ draft) 

 

Topic  Auckland (3 Feb)  Wellington (11 Feb)  Christchurch (9 Feb) 

Focus Areas  ● Should we include a project that is 
“responding” to emerging issues, to 
make clear to stakeholders that we 
are, and preserve resourcing.  

● Working with others in the field is a 
good thing, to explore through 
collaboration and alliance. TUANZ on 
use; AUT/Unitec on cyber security for 
example.  

● Intending to keep the community 
funding work as separate to the 
Focus areas, but referencing and 
aware of them. 

● Social impact? Balance across the 
five segments on the 
multistakeholder model. For 
example, impact of the Internet on 
SHAs.  

● Major legal issues emerging? 
Insurance issues of driverless cars. 
Software having appropriate security 
built in, in our IoT era. Visibility of 
power meter consumption by 
appropriately authorised people. 
BUT: how do these things relate to 
the Internet? Driverless cars aren’t 
on the Open Internet.  

● Make sure these plug into the 
organisational strategy.  

● How are we going to align with other organisations: Do we 
add to their work, influence what they think through 
advocacy.  

● What are we doing in education sector? With schools? 
We’ve predominantly supported other organisations that 
are more active in education (e.g. Netsafe, 20/20, 
Computers in Homes, Creative Commons). Could we be 
doing more with education sector? 

● What is our prioritisation? Is there resource to do all 6 
justice? Need to protect staff time for reactive work. 

● In principle all 6 ‘sound great’, will they each have staff 
taking responsibility for them? Do we have staff who have 
the skills for each? 

● Would we contract in someone to lead something if we 
don’t have the staff? 

● Are there other areas that the TPPA will be bringing in that 
INZ should be focussing on?  

● Are there new issues that we should be getting ready for? 
e.g. 
­ trust and security stuff 
­ what is going to be the regulatory environment for 

encryption 
● Would have thought the privacy project would cover the 

encryption debate & issues. 
● Data Futures Partnership 
● Government monitoring beneficiaries Internet use: does 

InternetNZ have a watchdog role in use/misuse of   
● As ppl start to get better tools & more information out of the 

data going to be  
● What are the social impacts of Big Data & advanced 

analytics? 
● What about a statement calling for a general security 

standard for IoT? 
○ reference to US FTC 

● Social contract issues with Government organisations who 
are leaning very heavily on Internet channels but potentially 
leave people behind. 

On Access: 
● We need to explain what the 

divide/s are, for example the skills 
divides, the knowledge divides, as 
well as the obvious economic 
exclusion ones 

● there is a definitional/educational 
role here 

On Use: 
● App development and walled 

gardens ­ to what degree is this an 
enabling, use of the Internet versus 
the building of a closed platform 
and ecosystem? 

● What is InternetNZ’s relationship to 
the “maker culture” and should we 
further enable or participate in 
this? 

On Trust 
● What is the IT analogue to Surf 

Lifesaving ­ and should we build it? 
 
Other potential areas of Interest 
● Sensing cities/urban 

transformation potential of the 
Internet 

● Our relationship with ConsumerNZ, 
and how we can enable them to 
play more of a role in tech.  

● TPPA and its implications for NZ 
internet 

● Open laws, and the “right to do 
things” 

● We should align ourselves with the 
people/Internet community, 
explicitly  



 
 
InternetNZ Member Meetups ­ February 2016 (notes of points from staff & member participants ­ draft) 

Prod & Serv 
Dev’t 

● What about the issue of competing 
against our member’s commercial 
interests? Divided opinions ­ 
commerce act and charities issues if 
non­compete is a rule? 

● Should we be focusing on 
under­served areas of commercial 
development, rather than jumping 
into busy markets.   

● Worry about IntNZ being seen to chill 
innovation by squashing new 
business through stealing ideas.  

● We need to be careful about creating 
an expectation that members can 
veto ideas through their own interests 
­ this could be misused.  

● No or badly insufficient product 
availability is probably a better space 
to be in.  

● Should we even be going after things 
that are income generating? We 
have a reliable revenue stream in 
.NZ 

● Diversification preserves the 
organisation in the event of 
substantial decline in domain name 
revenues. Our cause and objects are 
long run ­ it is prudent to preserve an 
income base that is likewise. 

● The Broadband Map is a good 
example of developing a useful 
product, in an underserved area, 
where there is a monetisable 
opportunity for product development 
alongside providing a community 
service. This is a good example. This 
should be the model? 

 
 
 
 

● Some oppose on principle, others think that the constraints 
mean that it’ll be very hard to succeed. 

● Our policy and community work needs to be funded 
somehow. We need to ensure that InternetNZ can continue 
to be funded and do its essential work for the question. 

● Anything we do will probably put us in competition with our 
members ­ but we think that competition is good ­ within a 
market. 

● Having a rule that said we can’t ever compete with 
members wouldn’t work. Jordan highlighted UK example of 
a ​Competition Impact Assessment​. Aim to avoid market 
distortions or initiatives that could be reasonably seen to 
knowingly advantage some members and disadvantage 
others. 

● The key isn’t competition, it’s unfair competition. 
● Is the first call that’s made ‘we will end up competing’. 

Therefore, are there other things we can do with our skills 
that can bring in $$$. 

● How much of the objection is about the theory and 
uncomfortableness with the abstract? Will we still be doing 
things that are good, even if they don’t make profits? 

● Endorse the use of the term ‘humble servants’ as the 
approach. 

 

● What are the OPEN opportunities 
here? “turnpikes versus public 
roads”  

● Don’t use commercial pressure to 
reduce competition. 

● OK with the numbers ­ no 
concerns about the size of 
investment 

● Don’t seek to disrupt areas where 
we are aware that innovation is 
already happening­ what is our 
unique offerings? 

● How are other TLDs approaching 
these challenges? More to share 
here? 

 



 
 
InternetNZ Member Meetups ­ February 2016 (notes of points from staff & member participants ­ draft) 

NetHui 2016  ● In part a response to demand to take 
NH to other parts of new Zealand.  

● The national model remains useful, 
but there is value in smaller 
conversations too. 

● Linking these together on the Internet 
unfortunately doesn’t necessarily 
work well across the entire event. 

● NetHui is something unique in its 
focus and approach, across topics 
and sociality. That’s something we 
should try to preserve, even when 
collaborating.  

● Not discussed, out of time  ● There is demand around areas, 
and a useful story to tell 

● Examples ­ Nelson, Timaru, West 
Coast ­ these are places we could 
target in the south.  

General  ● Communications are good! 
Informative, well organised, well 
presented.  

● Having an Auckland presence and 
holding events like this are a good 
thing.  

● Commitment of the membership? It’s 
a shame that we don’t have more 
attendance from our membership in 
participating in important discussions 
like this. We should look across 
timing ­ school holidays, and holiday 
breaks for example.  

● Wasn’t aware that InternetNZ existed until 4­5 days ago. Is 
InternetNZ looking at more outreach to try and link into 
tertiary students and broader parts of the Internet 
Community? 

● Send to Jordan! 
● The people who know about us respect us. 
● If InternetNZ has a position to send out to tertiary 

institutions. Pitch and rock up to tertiary institutions to give 
them the Gospel. 

● Comms have improved ­ website is 
better, and the information 
products we produce useful 

● We should encourage TED talk 
style things for funding recipient ­ 
share the knowledge we have 
helped to create 

● We should have a travel round 
related to nethui to encourage 
participation? 

● Diversity of InternetNZ 
membership 

● Indigenous advisory group for 
InternetNZ? 

 
 
Online Meeting ­ 10 Feb 
 
From one participant: 
 
Detailed discussion on Use Focus Areas: 
 
One in particular that gets attention ­ use of the Internet for everyone’s benefit. Goals don’t reflect everyone. Challenge of individual use versus business use of 
the Internet. 



 
 
InternetNZ Member Meetups ­ February 2016 (notes of points from staff & member participants ­ draft) 

 
Economic gains piece partially balances, but not quite. it would be useful for us to think about what business and economic and creator use of the internet means, 
and how some of that is threatening to some of these interests. there is a tension there ­ do we intend to work in that tension? 
 
Jordan: the open internet. Intention is not to close off capacity of generative internet. We reconcile the tensions against our principles of support for OI. Send SC 
paper 
 
Leveraging the creative potential of the internet is different from the promoting and protecting. there is a piece about encouraging the creative sector to use the 
internet effectively, and that is a point of collaboration about where we could work together. There is a non­conflicting angle of common interest here. Andrew and 
participant to discuss that further. 
 
By email from one intending participant: 
 

­ support of Product and Service Development approach 
­ on Focus Areas: 

­ Access: supportive 
­ Use: beyond InternetNZ remit and capability, not necessary 
­ Trust: InternetNZ supports Open, let others develop Safe in that context. 



 

 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://internetnz.nz/about/governance


 

 

 

 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 



 

 

 

 

     

 

 

• 

• 

• 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

     

 

 

 

 

https://internetnz.nz/about/constitution


 

 

 

 

     

 

 

 

                                                

 

http://www.nominet.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/02/Sir-Michael-Lyons-Report-2016.pdf
http://www.nominet.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/02/Sir-Michael-Lyons-Report-2016.pdf


 

 

 

 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

     

 

 



 

 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 



 

 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 



 

For Discussion 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



https://cloud.internetnz.net.nz/index.php/apps/files/ajax/download.php?dir=%2FCouncil%2FReports%2FGrants%20reporting%2FGrants%20reports%20February%202016%20Council&files=Nat%20Dudley%20Final%20Report.pdf
https://cloud.internetnz.net.nz/index.php/apps/files/ajax/download.php?dir=%2FCouncil%2FReports%2FGrants%20reporting%2FGrants%20reports%20February%202016%20Council&files=Mark%20Frater%20Final%20report.pdf
https://cloud.internetnz.net.nz/index.php/apps/files/ajax/download.php?dir=%2FCouncil%2FReports%2FGrants%20reporting%2FGrants%20reports%20February%202016%20Council&files=Adon%20Moskal%20Final%20report.pdf
https://cloud.internetnz.net.nz/index.php/apps/files/ajax/download.php?dir=%2FCouncil%2FReports%2FGrants%20reporting%2FGrants%20reports%20February%202016%20Council&files=Winston%20Seah%20Mid-year%20report.pdf
https://cloud.internetnz.net.nz/index.php/apps/files/ajax/download.php?dir=%2FCouncil%2FReports%2FGrants%20reporting%2FGrants%20reports%20February%202016%20Council&files=Blind%20Citizens%20Mid-Year%20Report.doc






 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 

- 

- 

 

https://internetnz.nz/blog/icann-accountability-final-hurdle-looms
https://internetnz.nz/blog/icann-accountability-final-hurdle-looms


 



 

1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

2 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Internet New Zealand

Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Quarter Ended 31 December 2015



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Internet New Zealand

Table of Contents

For the Quarter Ended 31 December 2015

Compilation Report 1

Consolidated Income Statement 2

Statement of Movements in Equity 3

Balance Sheet 4

Statement of Cash Flows 5

Cash Flow Reconciliation 5



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

-1-

Internet New Zealand

Compilation Report

For the Quarter Ended 31 December 2015

1. Scope

On the basis of information you provided, we have compiled the Financial Statements, in accordance with 

Service Engagement Standard No. 2: Compilation of Financial Information, for Internet New Zealand. These 

are special purpose financial statements.

2. Responsibilities:

You are solely responsible for the information contained in the Financial Statements and have determined 

that the Financial Reporting Act 1993 used is appropriate to meet your needs and for the purpose that the 

Financial Statements were prepared. The Financial Statements were prepared exclusively for your benefit. 

We do not accept responsibility to any other person for the contents of the Financial Statements.

3. No Audit or Review Engagement Undertaken:

Our procedures use accounting expertise to undertake the compilation of the Financial Statements from 

information you provided. Our procedures do not include verification or validation procedures. No audit or 

review engagement has been performed and accordingly no assurance is expressed. 

4. Disclaimer of Liability:

Neither we nor any of our employees accept any responsibility for the reliability, accuracy or completeness 

of the informtaion from which the Financial Statements have been compiled nor do we accept any liability of 

any kind whatsoever, including liability by reason of negligence, to any person for losses incurred as a result 

of placing reliance on the compiled financial information.

Deloitte

Wellington NZ

9-Feb-16



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Consolidated Income Statement

For the Quarter Ended 31 December 2015

Qtr YTD Qtr YTD Qtr YTD Qtr YTD

Income 2,486,379 7,405,137 107,552 265,341 2,468,471 7,354,559 484,660 1,445,580

Other Income 174,064 174,409 174,064 174,409 0 0 0 0

Dividends Received 0 0 1,300,000 2,870,058 0 0 0 0

Interest Received 96,517 309,536 21,139 31,560 74,431 267,197 947 10,779

Managed Funds Income 59,747 87,957 59,747 87,957 0 0 0 0

Total Income 2,816,707 7,977,039 1,662,502 3,429,325 2,542,902 7,621,756 485,607 1,456,359

Less Expenses

Direct Expenses 201,126 554,384 0 0 668,586 1,956,764 0 0

Other Expenses 2,474,608 7,190,764 1,203,503 3,315,373 870,586 2,789,224 507,363 1,344,130

Total Expenses 2,675,734 7,745,148 1,203,503 3,315,373 1,539,172 4,745,988 507,363 1,344,130

Net Profit (Loss) Before Tax 140,973 231,891 458,999 113,952 1,003,730 2,875,768 (21,756) 112,229

Less Provision for Tax 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Net Profit (Loss) After Tax 140,973 231,891 458,999 113,952 1,003,730 2,875,768 (21,756) 112,229

Notes:

The income and expenditure lines for the individual entities do not add to the Group totals due to the following

intra-group entries being eliminated:

1. GSE paid by NZRS and DNCL to INZ

2. The DNCL fee paid by NZRS to DNCL

3. The dividend paid by NZRS to INZ

The Group year to date net profit is $2,870,058 (quarter $1,300,000) less than the sum of the individual entities due to the

dividend received by INZ from NZRS being removed from income while the payment by NZRS shows under their

statement of movements in equity on page 3.

INZ NZRS DNCLGroup



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Internet New Zealand

Statement of Movements in Equity

For the Quarter Ended 31 December 2015

Qtr YTD Qtr YTD Qtr YTD Qtr YTD

Opening Equity 8,983,105 8,892,187 4,816,884 5,161,931 3,766,661 3,464,681 399,560 265,575

Plus:

Shares Subscribed 0 0 0 0 30,000 30,000 580,000 580,000

Net Profit (Loss) After Tax 140,973 231,891 458,999 113,952 1,003,730 2,875,768 (21,756) 112,229

Less:

Dividend Paid 0 0 0 0 1,300,000 2,870,058 0 0

Closing Equity 9,124,078 9,124,078 5,275,883 5,275,883 3,500,391 3,500,391 957,804 957,804

INZ NZRS DNCLGroup

-3-



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Internet New Zealand

Balance Sheet

As at 31 December 2015

Group INZ NZRS DNCL

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 13,294,203 1,971,936 10,265,653 1,056,614

Managed Funds 2,461,705 2,461,705 0 0

Other Current Assets 862,310 10,184 826,613 25,513

Total Current Assets 16,618,218 4,443,825 11,092,266 1,082,127

Property, Equipment & Software 1,210,857 435,073 704,719 71,065

Intangible Assets 0 0 0 0

Investments

Shares and Loans 0 610,000 0 0

Total Assets 17,829,075 5,488,898 11,796,985 1,153,192

Less Liabilities:

Deferred Income 7,879,684 0 7,879,684 0

Trade and Other Payables 825,313 213,015 416,910 195,388

Total Liabilities 8,704,997 213,015 8,296,594 195,388

Net Book Value of Assets 9,124,078 5,275,883 3,500,391 957,804

Represented By:

Total Equity 9,124,078 5,275,883 3,500,391 957,804

-4-



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Internet New Zealand

Statement of Cashflows

For the Quarter Ended 31 December 2015

Qtr YTD

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Cash was provided from:

Receipts from customers 2,394,196 7,712,155

Interest Received 96,517 309,536

Managed Funds Income 59,747 87,957

Total Received 2,550,460 8,109,648

Cash was distributed to:

Payments to Suppliers and Employees 1,904,466 6,632,757

Total Payments 1,904,466 6,632,757

Net Flows From Operating Activities 645,994 1,476,891

Cash Flows From Investing & Financing Activities

Cash was distributed to:

Purchase of Property, Equipment & Software 107,833 277,734

Net Cash Flows From Investing & Financing Activities (107,833) (277,734)

Net Increase Decrease in Cash & Cash Equivalents 538,161 1,199,157

Plus Opening Cash 15,217,747 14,556,751

Closing Cash Carried Forward 15,755,908 15,755,908

Closing Cash Comprises

Cash & Cash Equivalents 13,294,203 13,294,203

Managed Funds 2,461,705 2,461,705

15,755,908 15,755,908

Cash Flow Reconciliation

Net Profit (Loss) After Tax 140,973 231,891

Plus (Less) non cash items

Depreciation 185,666 595,577

Subtotal 326,639 827,468

Movement in Working Capital

(increase) decrease in receivables 623,900 950,736

increase (decrease) in payables (38,298) (433,922)

increase (decrease) in deferred income (266,247) 132,609

Net Cash Flows From operations 645,994 1,476,891

-5-

Group



 

 

 



 

 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 



International Travel Policy Guidelines 

Purpose 
As representatives of a ​not­for­profit, charitable society​ it is particularly important that we are 
careful to use resources prudently. Those who arrange and undertake travel for InternetNZ 
must make careful and informed decisions balancing our need to represent our members 
while using funds carefully, cognizant of how such actions may be perceived by members.  

Scope 
The policy applies to those travelling on behalf of InternetNZ or its subsidiaries. Henceforth 
reference to InternetNZ includes subsidiaries. 

Traveler includes staff, Directors, or others travelling for the business purposes of, and 
wholly or partly funded by InternetNZ. 
 
Objectives 

● To ensure the health and safety of individuals travelling on behalf of InternetNZ or 
subsidiaries.  

● To ensure all individuals have a clear and consistent understanding of policies 
regarding international travel 

● To provide a reasonable level of service and comfort at an affordable cost 

Principles 
The following principles underpin this policy:  

● The safety and security of the individual is paramount. 
● No individual should be out of pocket as a result of undertaking business related 

travel. 
● Wherever practicable, individuals are expected to:   

o prepare a travel plan that requires least (paid) time away from the office 
o take the most direct route to the destination 
o use the most cost­effective options 

● Travel costs should be prepaid by, or directly charged to InternetNZ where possible. 
● International travel is defined as travel beyond New Zealand. 

Guidelines 
The following areas should be suitably addressed in the policy: 

Air Travel 

Visas and Passports 
Travelers are responsible for passports and that appropriate visas are obtained. InternetNZ 
will reimburse visa and related costs, and fees for a standard Adult NZ Passport. Where the 
traveler uses another passport, additional costs must be borne by the traveler.  

Reservations  
● Advice should be sought from the InternetNZ travel agent as to the best time to book 

travel 
● That travel arrangements are made at least 14 days in advance of travel 
● That travel itineraries are based on, and in order of:  



o reasonable overall travel time 
o lowest possible fare available at time of booking subject to a prudent view of 

flexibility requirements 

Air Mileage Loyalty Programs  
● That managing the employee’s personal accounts is the responsibility of the 

employee.  
● That personal miles earned while travelling on business are retained by the 

employee to be used as they wish, although corporate rewards will be retained by 
InternetNZ  

● That air miles or upgrades used for business travel are not reimbursable.  

International Flights  
● That business class may be booked for flights of more than six hours actual airtime.  
● That if a medical condition necessitates upgraded travel, employees should obtain a 

physician’s order prior to booking.  

Accommodation 

Reservations and payment 
● That accommodation for business travel must be co­ordinated through InternetNZ.  
● That any personal expenses (e.g. mini­bar) must be paid by the individual.   

Selection 
● That accommodation should be reasonable both in terms of standard and price.  In 

deciding what is reasonable, take account of: 
o safety and security of the individual. 
o availability 
o the nature of the work being undertaken 
o the proximity of the accommodation to the place of work 

Long­term stays 
● That individuals staying a week or longer should enquire about long term discounts.  
● That when possible, alternatives such as serviced apartments should be considered.  

Maximum Rates  
● That the lodging selected not exceed the reasonable local cost of a 4 star hotel. 
● That there is a policy in place for when accommodation cannot be found within these 

limits. 

Meals and Entertainment 

Business Meals  
● That a policy is in place for a meal where business is discussed.  
● That these meals meet the following guidelines: 

o Meeting should be intentional   
▪ Deliberate with a clear, reasonable, specific business purpose   
▪ Have a pre­established agenda   

o Meal expense must be ordinary and necessary   
▪ An ordinary expense is an expense that is common and accepted in 

the course of business   
▪ A necessary expense is one that is appropriate for the business   



o Meeting should only be conducted over meal time if the invited attendees 
schedules provide no other alternative and not for the primary purpose of 
consuming a meal   

Who pays  
● That when more than one employee is present at a business meal, the employee 

with the highest ranking job level should pay the bill.  

Meal limits  
● That the money spent on meals and snacks per day not exceed the daily balances 

listed below: Please note that this is a maximum, not a per diem.  
o $150NZD When traveling and dining in any location other than the cities cited 

below   
o $225NZD When traveling in the following: Amsterdam, Berlin, Brussels, 

Davos, Dubai, Frankfurt, Geneva, London, Paris, Stockholm, Tokyo, Zurich, 
New York City, San Francisco (other high­cost cities will be recognised as 
required) 

● That there is a policy in place for when meal costs exceed the daily limit.  

Official entertainment 
● That expense claims be subjected to the test of whether the expenditure was 

reasonably related to the objectives of InternetNZ, and is not extravagant. Staff 
should bear in mind that any test of reasonableness should include a consideration of 
how the expenditure account would appear to members of InternetNZ.  

● That catering and other costs incurred in connection with stakeholder liaison or team 
exercise be appropriate to its business purpose, such as:  

o building relationships that are important to InternetNZ 
o representation of InternetNZ  
o reciprocity of hospitality where this has a clear business purpose and is within 

normal bounds 
o recognising significant achievement  
o supporting internal organisational or skills development.  

● That all hospitality expenditure over $500 must have the prior approval of the CE  

Ground Transportation 
● That the safest, most cost­effective, and efficient ground transportation is to be used.  

Taxi and town car  
● That taxis are the preferred ground transportation method.  

Rental Car  
● That safety is paramount 
● That in general, a smaller car is preferred;  
● That the size and type of the rental car should be appropriate for the number of 

people in the car and the road conditions on which it will be used.  
● That when renting a car internationally, insurance is purchased at the time of the 

rental.  
● That individuals planning to rent a car understand when rental agencies require an 

international driver’s license.  
● That the cost to acquire this license is reimbursable.  

Rail  



● That standard class of rail is preferred.  
● That business class and high speed rail may be reserved when more flexibility is 

necessary.  

Combining Business and Personal Travel  

Airfare  
● That InternetNZ recognises the active travel schedules of employees,  
● That as a convenience benefit, employees may add and pay for a personal leg to a 

business itinerary. 
● That flight arrangements can be made to include a non­business guest, with the cost 

of that travel charged to the employee. 
● That business and personal expenses must be clearly distinguished.  
● That the request must be made at the same time as the original travel request.  
● That if a combined business/personal itinerary is equal to or less than the cost of a 

business­only airfare, there is no cost to the employee (downgrading flights to reduce 
the cost of travel is not acceptable). 

● That if a combined business/personal itinerary is greater than the cost of a 
business­only airfare, the personal portion will be charged to the employee.  

● That Chief Executives retain discretion on a case­by­case basis for addressing 
specific family needs of employees where that requires deviation from this section of 
the guidelines (e.g. staff with young children, or staff who have been travelling a 
great deal). Where CE travel is involved, they will consult with their Chair. 

Lodging  
● That lodging may be shared with non­business guests.  
● That lodging costs of non­business guests are not reimbursable.  
● That accommodations such as different room types, extra rooms, and other special 

amenities for personal guests should be arranged by the employee and paid directly 
to the hotel upon checkout.  

Ground Transportation  
● That ground transportation costs of non­business guests are not reimbursable. 

Speaking Engagements  

● That to avoid potential conflict of interest issues, InternetNZ should pay all travel 
expenses for an employee who is asked to speak publicly on internet­related 
business.  

● That on occasion, the invitee organization may offer to pay for an InternetNZ 
employee’s travel expenses. This is allowable as long as there is no obvious conflict 
of interest.  

Other Expenses 

Telephone, fax and email charges  
● That reasonable telephone, fax, and email charges incurred for official business will 

be reimbursed.   
● That individuals are expected to use their best judgment in limiting personal calls to a 

reasonable length while traveling on business.  
● That mobile devices should be used whenever possible.  



● That individuals consider whether they should purchase a local SIM card or add an 
international plan to their mobile device.  

Tipping  
● That tips are a reimbursable expense and should be appropriate to the location, 

service level and local protocol and never to exceed 20% of the total bill.  

Emergencies and acts of God 
● That policies be in place to deal with an employee needing to make snap decisions 

reacting to an emergency situation. 

Laundry  
● That laundry costs, including pressing and dry­cleaning, incurred while undertaking 

official travel of more than two nights, may be claimed to a reasonable cost.  

Excess baggage  
● That individuals may not claim for excess baggage, except where travelling with 

heavy or bulky items is necessary for business purposes or medical reasons. 

Tolls, congestion charges and parking fees  
● That tolls, congestion charges, and parking fees are reimbursable.  

Home and family maintenance and expenses 
● InternetNZ will not pay any costs you may incur to maintain your home and family 

while you are away. This includes any pet minding or other household matters.  

 



 

 

 



InternetNZ Group:  Class of Travel Review 

Introduction 

InternetNZ Group entities (InternetNZ, DNCL and NZRS) together expend significant sums 

on international travel and accommodation. Approaches to travel expenditure control, 

including the class of travel, are broadly consistent across the Group, but have not been 

reviewed for some time. 

 

InternetNZ, DNCL and NZRS agreed in August to conduct a review to look at the class of 

travel issue, model recent travel with a range of different class choices, and report findings to 

the Council and Boards. 

 

The review commences in September 2015 and should be complete in time for its findings to 

be considered by Council/Boards as they finalise 2016/17 budgets. 

Proposed methodology 

The working group (consisting of Amber Craig, Kelly Buehler, Adam Hunt and Mark Vivian) 

is expected to work through the following key steps: 

 

a. Receive data from CEs (or their agents) on past 12 months travel data (flights plus 

costs) of international flights taken by all staff. 

b. Interview the CEs (or take a written submission) on their views, as to issues with their 

respective travel policies and suggested improvements. 

c. Obtain travel policies from several relevant NZ organisations, to be used as 

guidelines where relevant. 

d. Make recommendations to Council and subsidiaries as to the benefits of keeping 

status quo vs recommended alternative approach, combined with an approximate 

quantitative view of the benefit. 

e. Provide top level summary of the pros/cons of either approach. 

f. Steps c. onwards are independent of staff (who are affected by the policy). 

 

It is expected most discussion will be by email and/or by video meetings as required.  

Powers and budget 

The working group has the power to: 

● seek information regarding travel itineraries and expenditure from the business units 

back to 1 April 2013; 

● approach our current travel agent and seek their assistance with costing and 

modelling as required; 

● discuss its proposed findings with other Board / Council members, and with the Chief 

Executives of the business units 

● prepare recommendations for initial discussion at Chairs and CEs and then with 

governing bodies across the Group 

 



To resource its activity, the following arrangements apply: 

● working group members can rely on resources from the nominating business units to 

fund attendance at meetings if required.  

● The direct costs of any analysis by agents, or any other analysis, will be shared 

equally between the three business units. 

Timeframe 

The working group should flesh out a plan at its first meeting to deliver its report to governing 

bodies by 1 February 2016, to allow the findings to flow into 2016/17 budgets as or if 

required. 

Staff support 

The working group should identify whether it requires staff support. This can be provided by 

non-travelling InternetNZ staff. 

 



 

 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://internetnz.nz/sites/default/files/SUB-APT-Board-Appt-Roles.pdf


 

 

 



 

.nz Quarterly Report 
Third Quarter ended  31 December 2015 

 
 
Introduction 
 
This is the third joint .nz quarterly report for the 2015/16 financial year.  Council is 
asked for feedback on this report and what changes, if any, Council would like to 
see for reports for the remainder of the year.  It is the intention of DNCL and NZRS 
to continue to provide a joint report to prevent the ongoing duplication of .nz 
information.  There is nothing in this report that is confidential. 
 
1. Global Domain Name Environment  

 
At the end of the quarter a total of 311.5m domain names had been registered 
among all TLDs. A further breakdown of this figure is provided in the table below:   

 
Domain name registrations as at  31 December 2015 31 December 2014 

ccTLDs  141.7m 133.9m 
Legacy gTLDs (created before 2012)  158.7m 150.5m 
New gTLDs (created after 2012)  10.9m 3.4m 

 
There are currently 10,333 .kiwi registrations – an increase of 38 during the quarter.   
 
2. Activities 

Supports transformations 1.2, 1.6, 1.7 and 1.8 
 
a) Research 
 
The third iteration of Colmar Brunton’s research commissioned by NZRS was 
completed and published in the form of infographics, video and long form story 
published at getyourselfonline.nz, NZRS Blog and Youtube.  Sponsored stories 
referencing the research were also commissioned in Techday and in Retail NZ 
magazine.   
 
Reseller and registrant surveys were conducted by NZRS on behalf of participating 
registrars and presented at the annual Registrar Conference.  This research yielded 
interesting results in the awareness of registrations at the second level, registrant 
satisfaction with their registrars and reasons for using a domain name.  
 
 
 
 
b) .nz Promotion and Marketing 



 
A number of media enquires were received during the quarter, including from The 
National Business Review (asking about the .nz WHOIS review) and Stuff.co.nz 
(asking about a name with incorrect registration details). .nz was additionally 
mentioned in NBR articles referencing two recent DRS decisions.   
 
Communications continued around conflicted names, with approximately 5,000 
update emails sent to registrants who have lodged a preference for their conflicted 
name, but where others in their conflict set are yet to do so.  
 
The annual .nz Registrar conference was held in November with good attendance 
in person attendance and via a live stream.   Registered attendance on the day 
covered over 77% of market share. The conference covered a wide range of topics 
all of which can be found at nzrs.net.nz/presentations.  In addition to the 
conference day, training was was provided as two half day sessions covering 
Conversion Rate Optimisation and  DNSSEC.  These too were well attended and 
received positive feedback. 
 
c) .nz Policy Consultation 
 
The two-stage review of the .nz WHOIS service began during the quarter (Details 
below), with awareness material produced and distributed for the review’s public 
consultations. Advertisements for the public meetings were in regional 
newspapers, online and in publications. NZRS and InternetNZ assisted with 
disseminating this messaging via their social media channels.  
 
d) Registrations at the Second Level   
 
A total of 496 conflict sets were resolved between 1 October and the end of 
December.  In addition to those conflict sets that are resolved, each month a 
number of conflict set cease to exist when all names in the conflict are released.  
The following table shows the progress in reducing conflict sets: 
 

 July Aug Sept 
Total 
for 
Q2 

Oct Nov Dec 
Total 
for 
Q3 

Conflicts  
Resolved 175 210 165 550 137 210 149 496 

Total 
Conflicts 18,505 18,206 17,992 - 17,804 17,526 17,320 - 

 
The total number of domains in the conflict sets is 40,464 as at the end of the 
quarter. 
 
Reservations were offered as an alternative to registration and a number of 
registrants took up this option.  Reservations are guaranteed until September 2016 



but no decision has yet been made on whether they expire then or after that date.  
The following table shows the number of reservations: 
 

 July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 

Reservations 18,336 18,151 18,030 17,874 17,649 17,515 

 
 

3. Policy Framework   
Supports transformation 1.5 

 
a) .nz policy 

 
• The first stage of the WHOIS Review consultation began in October, asking 

for people's views as to why there should be a .nz WHOIS service that 
makes available the information we collect when registering a .nz domain 
name. This consultation closed on 6 November 2015. All submissions are 
published on the DNC website - http://dnc.org.nz/whois-review-
consultation-1 

 
• Stage two of the WHOIS review began in November, with the launch of a 

public consultation asking for people's views on the ‘how’ and ‘what’ of 
WHOIS. 
 
Submissions close 29 January 2016, with comment sought on information 
disclosed in response to a WHOIS search, who disclosures should be made 
to, and how information should be provided.   Associated public meetings 
were held in November in Christchurch, Auckland and Wellington. An online 
public meeting was also held.  All submissions are published on the DNC 
website- http://dnc.org.nz/whois-review. 
 

• The revised .nz Policy Framework came into effect on 9 November 2015. 
 
4. Registrar Market  

Supports transformation 1.3 
 
 
 

Registrars authorised 90 

Registrars connected 87 

 
 
Number connected during the quarter: 1    
Number authorised during the quarter: 1   
Number de-authorised during the quarter: 0   
 

The following chart shows the spread of registrars across the level of domain name 
registrations: 
 



 
 
The following chart shows the number of registrars (excluding the DNC) 
connected to the SRS: 
 

 
 
 
5. Performance and Best Practice  

Supports the primary transformation, 1.1 and 1.4 
 



a) International 
 
• DNCL and NZRS staff and chairs attended ICANN in Dublin.  A joint report 

from the three CEs who attended was provided to council at the December 
meeting.  

 
b) Registry Performance 

 
SLA targets were met throughout this quarter.  SRS, DNS and Whois availability is 
noted in the table below: 
 

System SLA % Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 

SRS 99.90% 100% 100% 100% 

DNS 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Whois 99.90% 100% 100% 100% 

 
 
c) Domain Names 
 
The size of the register against NZRS budgeted growth is shown in  the chart 
below: 
 
 

 
 
 
The actual growth against NZRS budgeted growth is shown in the chart below: 
 

450,000

475,000

500,000

525,000

550,000

575,000

600,000

625,000

650,000

675,000

700,000

A
p

r-
12

Ju
n

-1
2

A
u

g
-1

2

O
ct

-1
2

D
ec

-1
2

F
eb

-1
3

A
p

r-
13

Ju
n

-1
3

A
u

g
-1

3

O
ct

-1
3

D
ec

-1
3

F
eb

-1
4

A
p

r-
14

Ju
n

-1
4

A
u

g
-1

4

O
ct

-1
4

D
ec

-1
4

F
eb

-1
5

A
p

r-
15

Ju
n

-1
5

A
u

g
-1

5

O
ct

-1
5

D
ec

-1
5

F
eb

-1
6

Register Size Budget Active Domains



 
 

 
 
 
The average term (average number of months a domain is registered/renewed for) 
is shown in the chart below: 
 

 
 
 

-5,000

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000
A

p
r-

12

Ju
n

-1
2

A
u

g
-1

2

O
ct

-1
2

D
ec

-1
2

F
eb

-1
3

A
p

r-
13

Ju
n

-1
3

A
u

g
-1

3

O
ct

-1
3

D
ec

-1
3

F
eb

-1
4

A
p

r-
14

Ju
n

-1
4

A
u

g
-1

4

O
ct

-1
4

D
ec

-1
4

F
eb

-1
5

A
p

r-
15

Ju
n

-1
5

A
u

g
-1

5

O
ct

-1
5

D
ec

-1
5

F
eb

-1
6

Growth vs Budget Net growth per month Monthly budget

0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

12.00

14.00

16.00

18.00

A
p

r-
12

Ju
n

-1
2

A
ug

-1
2

O
ct

-1
2

D
ec

-1
2

F
eb

-1
3

A
p

r-
13

Ju
n

-1
3

A
ug

-1
3

O
ct

-1
3

D
ec

-1
3

F
eb

-1
4

A
p

r-
14

Ju
n

-1
4

A
ug

-1
4

O
ct

-1
4

D
ec

-1
4

F
eb

-1
5

A
p

r-
15

Ju
n

-1
5

A
ug

-1
5

O
ct

-1
5

D
ec

-1
5

Average Domain Name Term Average months per create
Average months per renewal



 
 
 
6. .nz data  
 

The breakdown of domain name growth by second level is noted in the 
table below: 
 

  Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 

.nz 101,775 102,401 104,123 

.co.nz 479,707 479,442 479,190 

.org.nz 28,173 28,062 27,972 

.net.nz 26,645 26,474 26,323 

 
 
 

                           
David Farrar                 Richard Currey 
Chair, DNCL         Chair, NZRS  
 
  



Joint .nz Strategy Transformations  
 
Primary Transformation 

From To 
.nz operates as a successful ccTLD held in 
high regard domestically and internationally 
 

InternetNZ is widely recognised as a 
successful ccTLD manager and .nz is held in 
high regard domestically and Internationally  
 

 
 
Underlying transformations 
 

Transformation/s 
 From To 

1.1 Global benchmarks or best practice 
regarding what a world-class ccTLD is 
are varied and partly documented 
 

There are agreed global benchmarks and 
best practice for what a world-class ccTLD 
is, and .nz excels in assessments against 
these standards 
 

1.2 .nz is the default choice for New 
Zealanders 
 

.nz remains the preferred choice for New 
Zealanders in a highly competitive market 
 

1.3 The market for .nz registration services 
(among registrars and resellers) is 
competitive 
 

The market for .nz registration services 
(among registrars and resellers) is 
sophisticated and competitive 
 

1.4 Roles and responsibilities in managing 
.nz are being clarified 
 

Roles and responsibilities in managing 
.nz are clear, well documented and 
transparent 
 

1.5 The .nz policy framework has evolved 
from its origins in 2002 
 

The .nz policy framework has been reviewed 
and updated for current needs, 
and is validated as meeting the needs of 
the New Zealand Internet community 
 

1.6 Inconsistency in the articulation of the 
role, purpose and mandate for the 
operation of .nz across the Group – 
resulting in a lack of clarity among 
stakeholders 
 

The whole Group is confident in 
consistently articulating our role and 
purpose, and the mandate for our 
operation of .nz – resulting in the wider 
Internet community being clear about 
and supportive of our role 
 

1.7 InternetNZ has limited knowledge of 
the purchasing behaviour of registrants 

InternetNZ has good knowledge of the full 
sales channel including resellers and 
influencers, and the purchasing behaviours 
of registrants 

1.8 .nz is not a widely known brand .nz is a well recognised brand 

 



 
February 2016 
 
Jamie Baddeley 
President, InternetNZ 
 
Dear Jamie, 
 
Third Quarter 2015/16 report  
 
This report includes DNCL’s quarterly Profit and Loss Statement and other DNCL 
activities not included in the joint .nz report. If Council requires any further information 
please let me know so I can include it in future reports. 
 
Financial 
 

Domain Name Commission Limited 
Profit and Loss Statement 

For Quarter Ending  31 Dec 2015 
 

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
 

Oct - Dec 2015 Year-to-Date 

 
Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance 

INCOME             
Management Fee 467,460 467,460 0 1,402,380 1,402,380 0 
Authorisation Fees 6,000 3,000 3,000 12,000 6,000 6,000 
DRS Complaint Fees 11,200 12,000 (800) 31,200 32,000 (800) 
Other Income 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Interest Income 947 1,900 (953) 10,779 5,700 5,079 

Total Income 485,607 484,360 1,247 1,456,359 1,446,080 10,279 

 
  

 
  

  
  

EXPENSES   
 

  
  

  
Staff and Office Costs 316,031 316,879 848 931,562 940,743 9,181 
Professional Services and 
Communications 

30,235 40,251 10,016 92,008 148,249 56,241 

Dispute Resolution 
Services 

27,016 39,688 12,672 53,891 79,062 25,171 

DNCL and DNC activities 44,517 52,813 8,296 120,194 153,436 33,242 
International 78,318 99,999 21,681 116,484 197,999 81,515 

Total Expenditure 496,117 549,630 53,513 1,314,139 1,519,489 205,350 

 
  

 
  

  
  

Depreciation 11,246 13,376 2,130 29,992 40,126 10,134 

 
      

  
  

Net Profit/Loss (21,756) (78,646) 56,890 112,228 (113,535) 225,763 
 
 



 
 
Activities around producing guides to the Dispute Resolution Service and other areas 
will see expenses in the Communications area increase closer to budget by year end.  
Under International expenditure the ICANN contribution has not yet been paid, we are 
following up on the invoice for this. 
 
 
Security and Training 
 
DNCL engaged with and attended the launch event of the Government’s new cyber 
security strategy.   
 
 
Other matters  
 
A Board meeting was held in December and the minutes of the meeting are published 
at http://dnc.org.nz/content/Minutes_3_December_2015.html.   
 
 
Yours sincerely  

 
David Farrar 
Chair, DNCL  



 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Statement of Direction and 
Goals 

 
 

February 2016 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contents 
 
 
Introduction and Background      2   
Environmental Factors       3 
Functions and Expectations of DNCL      5 
DNCL Strategy        5  
Key Priorities and Performance Indicators    8  
Three year budget        9 



 2 

Introduction 
 
This DNCL Statement of Direction and Goals responds to the InternetNZ Statement 
of Expectations and sets out the key areas that DNCL will be focusing on in the 
2016-2017 financial year. 
 
Background 
 
InternetNZ holds the delegation for the .nz ccTLD. Under the terms of the Operating 
Agreement between DNCL and InternetNZ, DNCL manages this delegation and has 
been appointed to manage and administer the .nz domain name space on behalf of 
InternetNZ.  DNCL operates as the regulator of the .nz domain name space and, as 
such, oversees the operation of .nz aspects of the registry. In doing so, DNCL 
ensures the operation of a competitive market for the provision of registration 
services to the local Internet community, including .nz registrants. DNCL’s functions 
and responsibilities include approving operational policies, authorising registrars, 
reviewing the performance of the shared registry service to ensure a competitive 
market, approving technical changes and providing information to the public about 
the operation of .nz.  
 
The DNCL policy framework operates through private contractual arrangements 
between the DNCL and Registrars, NZRS and Registrars and between Registrars and 
Registrants. That .nz policy framework sets out the requirements for those wishing 
to operate registration businesses in the .nz domain name space.  These policies are 
the foundation of formal agreements, such as the Authorisation Agreement between 
DNCL and authorised Registrars.  A component of this policy framework is oversight 
of the shared registry service that Authorised Registrars may access in order to 
provide services to .nz registrants. 
 
All .nz policies are subject to regular, public reviews with the latest undertaken in 
2015 revisiting the whole .nz policy framework.  This significant review led to 
fourteen policies being rationalised down to four with two new main policies 
(Principles and Responsibilities Policy and the Operations and Procedures Policy) 
coming into effect in November 2015. 
 
Oversight of the shared registry services, operated by NZRS, is maintained through a 
Service Level Agreement that sets out the standards the shared registry service 
must meet, and the requirement for it to report to DNCL.  The registry reports 
separately to Council as the shareholder on its company performance. This SLA is 
currently being reviewed following the completion of the .nz Framework.  It is 
expected that the revised SLA will be signed and in effect by the start of the 2016-17 
financial year. 
 
All DNCL policies and related agreements reflect the principles for operating .nz as 
defined by InternetNZ and the requirements of a ccTLD manager.  These include 
protecting the rights of registrants, operating fairly to ensure a competitive market 
in which the registry does not, for example, offer registrations to the public or 
discriminate between Registrars, and respecting the rights of all those associated 
with the .nz domain name space.  It is within this overall regulatory framework that 
DNCL has developed strategic goals for the management and administration of 
the .nz domain name space. 
 
 



 3 

Environmental Factors 
 
Views of .nz registrants  
 
.nz has always prided itself on considering the views of the local Internet community 
and DNCL continues to monitor community views of how .nz functions and consider 
whether change may be beneficial.  Following on from the work on registrations at 
the second level, the last year has seen a major rework of the whole .nz policy 
framework to ensure it remains current.  Another significant review was then 
commenced around the WHOIS (the WHOIS review is still ongoing as this document 
is being developed). 
 
The process around the WHOIS review again demonstrates DNCL’s commitment to 
open, public consultation with submissions properly considered as part of the 
decision making process.  Two separate consultations have been undertaken. The 
first focused on why we collect information and make it available, and the second 
stage asked questions around what information is displayed in the WHOIS and how 
it is obtained.   If any change is proposed as part of the review it will lead to a third 
consultation so that people have a chance to comment on specific amendments.   
 
It’s important that DNCL continue to consult widely and openly.  It has been 
encouraging that interest in the WHOIS consultation has been relatively high with 
over 50 submissions received from a range of different people and organisations.  
We hope for a similar response when we go out later in the year undertaking our 
review of the policies around second level registrations. 
 
Security  
 
Retaining, and extending, confidence in .nz continues to be very important. There 
will be a continued focus on security matters given this remains an area of concern 
for many especially as the reliance on the Internet for business and trade increases.  
 
Over the last year, there has been a significant increase in DNCL’s engagement with 
Law Enforcement, Regulators and teams involved in investigations (both in the 
public and private sectors).  This engagement has primarily involved DNCL briefing 
and training them about Domain Names and sources of information to support their 
work.  However, this also promotes confidence in .nz and has numerous other 
positive outcomes.  This work will continue and is something DNCL is sharing and 
promoting across the AP region.  
 
Work has also continued promoting the benefits of DNSSEC to Registrars, 
Registrants and DNS Operators.  The rollout of DNSSEC is continually being 
reviewed and its implementation closely monitored as part of an ongoing project.  
DNCL will continue to provide an experienced security resource for the InternetNZ 
Group to contribute to projects identified, and overseen, by InternetNZ.  This will 
include involvement in Government security related strategies. 
 
Changing environment with new gTLDs  
 
With ever increasing numbers of new gTLDs, the changing environment provides 
opportunities and challenges. Promoting and marketing the benefits of .nz is seen to 
be important as the range of open gTLD registration options increases.  Promoting 
the benefits of .nz and raising general awareness of why .nz is a sensible and safe 



 4 

choice for Registrants is an ongoing task for DNCL.  Registrants, and potential 
Registrants, should be informed about domain names and what having a domain 
name can do for them, their business or organisations.   
 
In this dynamic environment of expanding choice for registrants, a key challenge is 
to ensure that the benefits of .nz registrations remain strong, clear and up to date. 
We have reviewed the strategic goals for .nz and have set ourselves challenges 
around defining what we mean by being successful. and how that might be 
measured  DNCL’s goals remain appropriate for the .nz ccTLD manager, and are 
critical to ensure a fair and competitive market for .nz registrations and to uphold 
core InternetNZ principles.  
 
DNCL will ensure that the fundamental policy framework that governs .nz remains 
robust and that .nz registrants continue to be supported within strategic objectives 
and regulatory oversight.   A major review of the policy framework was completed in 
2015 and changes made to it that now allow NZRS to undertake some additional 
services.  That is an example of policy evolving to fit with changing circumstances. 
 
We have recently expanded the range of choices within the .nz domain name space 
and, in doing so have strengthened the .nz experience and open competition and 
choice for registrants. Reviewing the policies around this change is part of our work 
for this year.  We need to make sure whatever we do we keep it current and relevant 
as this is part of the environment we find ourselves in.   
 
Managing legal risks 
 
The holder of any TLD delegation is exposed to serious and significant risks, 
including litigation from third parties and action by law enforcement and other 
government authorities. InternetNZ has taken steps to protect itself from this risk by 
delegating management of the ccTLD space to DNCL. DNCL manages this risk 
through principled, fair and impartial administration of .nz in the public good, as 
outlined in RFC 1591. Management of this legal risk remains a high priority for DNCL.  
 
In the court of public opinion, the credibility of the .nz domain name space also rests 
on strong dispute resolution policies, fair, competitive contractual arrangements that 
ensure properly authorised and competent Registrars, and upholding compliance of 
our policy framework and oversight of NZRS in respect of .nz. Changes in gTLD 
policy as well as new and emerging security issues mean that DNCL must be 
extremely vigilant in managing legal risks to .nz and continuing to maintain high 
levels of regulatory standard setting and oversight. 
 
Now that the licencing around WHOIS and copyright has been resolved, DNCL plans 
over the year to review the terms of use of WHOIS and look to use the exclusive 
licence granted it by InternetNZ to enforce the behaviour expected of parties to 
ensure the privacy of .nz registrants is respected. 
 
Contribution to INZ group 
 
DNCL is committed to supporting InternetNZ Group strategies and awareness of 
issues affecting the wider strategic focus.  This is demonstrated by the addition of a 
new strategic transformation that sets an expectation of proactive engagement of 
DNCL in this area.  Though it generally has only a minor impact on DNCL day to day 
activities with our “business as usual” functions around policy and compliance 



 5 

remaining the clear priority and major work requirement, it is important that the 
skills and knowledge of the DNCL team work to the benefit of the Group. 
 
 
Functions and Expectations of DNCL  
 
Council has noted in its Statement of Expectations that DNCL's core role is to 
operate, maintain, develop and enforce the policy framework for the .nz ccTLD, and 
to monitor and hold accountable NZRS’s performance against SLA standards of 
operation for .nz. 
 
In advancing this core role, DNCL is expected to provide the following core 
functions: 
 
• Maintain and develop the policy framework that sets out how .nz operates, and 

enforce its requirements on relevant parties. 
• Provide a service for resolving disputes between registrants consistent with 

the .nz policy framework. 
• Monitor and develop as required the SLA that specifies the service levels 

required for the operation of the SRS and the DNS.  
• Oversee the .nz market and provide support and advice for members of the 

public. 
 
DNCL is also expected, along with NZRS, to provide: 
 
§ .nz international representation consistent with the group international strategy 

and plan 
§ Development of the .nz product consistent with the group strategy goal 

regarding .nz being a world-class ccTLD.  
 
A secondary function for DNCL is to provide a resource for the InternetNZ unit to 
contribute to Issues Programme work on security matters. 
 
In particular, for the 2016-17 year, InternetNZ expects DNCL will work on the 
following specific tasks: 
 
• Conduct the planned review of the policies related to second level 

registrations. 
• Work with the shareholder to revise and update the Operating Agreement. 
• Work with the shareholder to review group policies relating to reporting. 
 
General expectations on DNCL by the shareholder reflect the vision that the Group is 
highly collaborative, committed to working together and to building a vibrant, 
collegial and inclusive culture to maximise the Group’s success.   
 
 
DNCL Strategy 
 
DNCL’s goal is to provide effective and trusted governance and management of the 
.nz domain name space to ensure our vision that .nz is the registration of choice for 
New Zealand registrants is achieved. 
 
DNCL has identified the following Strategic Transformations: 



 6 

 
1. Transformation one - DNCL manages .nz to the highest standard 
 

Transformation/s 
From To 

1.1 Having an effective regulatory 
process.  

DNCL is recognised and acknowledged 
as managing .nz well. 
 

1.2 DNCL has no objective measure of our 
success as a regulator. 

Performance indicators have been 
developed and implemented to 
measure the effectiveness of our 
regulatory operations. 

 
2. Transformation two – DNCL contributes effectively to other Group Strategies 

 
 Transformation/s 

From To 
2.1 DNCL contributes as requested in 

Group strategies. 
DNCL is aware of Group strategies and 
proactively identifies areas where it 
can contribute within existing 
resources. 

2.2 DNCL contributes to Group security 
related strategies. 

DNCL continually shares information 
with respect to security related 
matters and is confident that relevant 
knowledge and issues are shared 
across the Group. 

 
In addition to these transformations DNCL has also worked with NZRS on 
developing a joint .nz strategy that forms part of the InternetNZ Group Strategy 
around .nz.  In conjunction with NZRS, DNCL contributes to: 
 
Primary Transformation of Joint .nz Strategy  
 
From To 
.nz operates as a successful ccTLD held 
in high regard domestically and 
internationally. 

InternetNZ is widely recognised as a 
successful ccTLD manager and .nz is 
held in high regard domestically and 
internationally.  

 
Underlying Transformations of Joint .nz Strategy 
 
From To 
3.1 Global benchmarks or best practice 

regarding what a world-class ccTLD 
is are varied and partly documented. 

There are agreed global benchmarks 
and best practice for what a world-class 
ccTLD is, and .nz excels in assessments 
against these standards. 

Technical standards are easier to benchmark than measuring policy but DNCL is 
committed to research options that may be applicable to policy and also to 
contribute to the discussion and document what may be an applicable 
benchmark. 

 
3.2 .nz is the default choice for New .nz remains the preferred choice for 



 7 

Zealanders. New Zealanders in a highly competitive 
Market. 

DNCL’s role in this is through operating an effective market protecting 
registrants and raising awareness of the benefits of this.  We need to continue 
to ensure that our policies and processes support this transformation and that 
they remain current to reflect the market. 

 
3.3 The market for .nz registration 

services (among registrars and 
resellers) is competitive. 

The market for .nz registration services 
(among registrars and resellers) is 
sophisticated and competitive. 

DNCL needs to ensure our management and oversight of the registrars 
maintains the current competitive environment 

 
3.4 Roles and responsibilities in 

managing .nz are being clarified. 
Roles and responsibilities in managing 
.nz are clear, well documented and 
transparent. 

DNCL will contribute to the finalising of the .nz Framework and the Operating 
Agreements that define the roles within .nz. 

 
3.5 The .nz policy framework has 

evolved from its origins in 2002. 
The .nz policy framework has been 
reviewed and updated for current 
needs, and is validated as meeting the 
needs of the New Zealand Internet 
community. 

The revised .nz policy framework is now operational and within that DNCL will 
continue its regular reviews of key policy matters such as WHOIS, while also 
maintaining regular reviews of the policies themselves 

 
3.6 Inconsistency in the articulation of 

the role, purpose and mandate for 
the operation of .nz across the 
Group – resulting in a lack of clarity 
among stakeholders. 

The whole Group is confident in 
consistently articulating our role and 
purpose, and the mandate for our 
operation of .nz – resulting in the wider 
Internet community being clear about 
and supportive of our role. 

DNCL ensures all our publications use appropriate language and will identify 
opportunities to further educate regarding how .nz operates. 

 
3.7 InternetNZ has limited knowledge of 

the purchasing behaviour of 
registrants.  

InternetNZ has good knowledge of the 
full sales channel including resellers and 
influencers, and the purchasing 
behaviours of registrants.  

Working with NZRS, DNCL will identify areas where it is appropriate for DNCL 
to seek information that improves our knowledge of registrant behaviour. 

 
3.8 .nz is not a widely known brand. .nz is a well-recognised brand. 

Though DNCL is not responsible for the visual .nz brand, it is responsible for the 
reputation and knowledge of .nz and so will identify options for raising 
awareness of that. 

 
“Business as usual” functions around policy and compliance are a clear priority and it 
is undertaking this work to a high level that goes a long way towards delivering on 
our strategic goals and longer term strategic transformations. 



 8 

A number of activities have been identified as giving effect to the strategic 
transformations some of which are identified in the key priorities and performance 
indicators section.   One focus for 2016-17 will be on explaining how we will define 
and measure success. 
 
Key Priorities and Performance Indicators 
 
1. DNCL’s main focus remains the effective oversight and administration of 

the .nz domain name space on behalf of InternetNZ.  This involves, in part, 
managing the operation of the .nz domain name space, including monitoring 
activity and regulating the use of the space as necessary.  It also includes 
overseeing the performance of NZRS in line with the standards set out in the 
Service Level Agreement between DNCL and NZRS. 
§ DNCL will report quarterly to InternetNZ Council regarding core activities 

so that Council can monitor DNCL performance.   
§ DNCL will report on NZRS’ performance against the SLA, both to 

InternetNZ Council and publicly through the DNCL website. 
§ No upheld complaints or successful court action against DNCL should 

result from DNCL’s operations. 
 
2. Key projects will be the review of the policies around the implementation of 

second level registrations.  
§ DNCL will review the second level registrations policies and report on any 

proposed changes. 
§ DNCL will complete a public review of WHOIS principles and operations 

in .nz. 
§ DNCL will contribute to the review of the Operating Agreement with 

InternetNZ. 
§ DNCL will contribute to a review of the policy around reporting in the 

InternetNZ Group. 
 
3. DNCL will proactively develop and implement steps to strengthen the public 

perception and value proposition of .nz. We will focus on three areas: 
§ Promoting DNSSEC as a valuable security tool; and 
§ Implementing, with NZRS, joint initiatives for promoting .nz. 
§ Identifying, with NZRS, additional products that will enhance the .nz space. 

 
4. DNCL will work towards giving effect to the strategic transformation and will 

report on activities towards this goal. 
§ DNCL will clearly articulate what it defines as ‘success’ and how this will 

be measured. 
 
5. DNCL will promote .nz objectives internationally.  We will support international 

developments that align with .nz objectives and share the .nz experience and 
success at an international level, in conjunction with NZRS. 
§ Reports relating to international meeting attendance, presentations and 

assistance to other ccTLDs will be provided as part of DNCL’s reporting to 
Council.  These will demonstrate the contribution .nz is making 
internationally including the role of the DNC on the ccNSO Council. 

 
6. DNCL will focus on a greater contribution to wider industry DNS trust and 

security matters.    



 9 

§ Contribution to Internet security matters will be demonstrated in reports 
to Council and Council will be advised of policy developments in respect 
of security matters. 

 
7. As part of the InternetNZ Group, DNCL will contribute to initiatives undertaken 

in respect of group strategic priorities, including advising InternetNZ where 
such initiatives have implications for the policy and compliance framework of 
the .nz domain name space.  Key activities will include the ongoing 
development of a .nz strategy in conjunction with NZRS 

 
§ .nz strategy reviewed and presented to the InternetNZ Council regularly 

 
Draft Three Year Budget 
 
Under the terms of the Operating Agreement between DNCL and InternetNZ, the 
company operates on a “break even” basis and sets the management fee to ensure 
the current contingency fund of around $800,000 does not increase significantly, 
and also does not breach the requirement that it not exceed 60% of the annual 
operating budget. 
 
Additionally, the Statement of Expectations states that DNCL is to manage 
expenditure so as to maintain or reduce nominal expenditure from 2014-15 levels 
once registrations direct at the second level project work is complete.  The three 
year budget outlined below meets this expectation as expenditure in 2014-15 was 
$2,002,965 and it is not expected to reach this level over any of the next three years. 
 

 
2016/17 

Draft 
Budget 

2017/18 
Draft 

Budget 

2018/19 
Draft 

Budget 
INCOME    
Management Fee $1,869,840 $1,869,840 $1,869,840 
Authorisation Fees $9,000 $6,000 $6,000 
DRS Complaint Fees $36,000 $36,000 $36,000 
Interest  $15,000 $15,000 $15,000 

Total $1,929,840 $1,926,840 $1,926,840 
    
    
EXPENSES    
Staff and Office Costs $1,247,278 $1,280,225 $1,317,734 
Professional Services and 
Communications 

$146,300 $129,300 $133,300 

Dispute Resolution Service  $101,150 $101,150 $101,150 
DNCL and DNC activities $168,250 $170,250 $176,588 
International $218,000 $218,000 $218,000 

Total $1,880,978 $1,898,925 $1,946,772 
Capital depreciation $47,719 $35,712 $9,832 

Gross surplus/deficit $1,143 -$7,797 -$29,764 
 

 
David Farrar 
Chair, DNCL 



 

 

 



	
  

	
  

	
  

	
  

31 December 2015 

Jamie Baddeley 
President 
InternetNZ 
PO Box 11 881 
Wellington 
         

Dear Jamie 

Re: 3rd Quarter 2015 – 2016 Report  

We enclose our third quarterly report of the 2015 - 2016 year; the quarter 
ended 31 December 2015.  The report, which I submit on behalf of the 
Board, consists of the summarised management accounts and a 
commentary on financial, operational, and strategic issues in relation to the 
company’s performance.  There is nothing in the report that we regard as 
confidential. 

This report meets the requirement of the Reporting Policy incorporated in 
the July 2008 INZ - NZRS Operating Agreement. 

All reporting on .nz is found in our joint report with DNCL. 

All reporting on Business Development is found in our separate report.  

 

1.  Financial 

Enclosed are Statements of: 

• Financial performance; and 

• Financial position 

These statements are based on our management accounts for the quarter.   

As requested our financial performance statements include a breakdown of 
expenditure by activity. 

The net profit before tax of $1,003,730 for the quarter was 17.0% above the 
budgeted $860,387.  



	
  

	
  

	
  

	
  

Domain name growth was above budget for the quarter.  Growth was 1,256 
versus a budgeted -3,663.  October’s net growth was 35, November’s net 
growth was 65 and December’s net growth was 1,156.   While the growth of 
the second level met expectations, the drop off in registrations within 
.co.nz was much less pronounced than budgeted for.  At this time it is 
unclear if this is the new normal or if a drop will come later than expected. 

Actual domain name fee income for the quarter was above budget by 
$58,776 (actual $2,468,471 versus budgeted $2,409,695). 

Expenses for the quarter were $110,823 below budget (actual $1,539,172 
versus budgeted $1,649,995) due to a combination of the timing of 
expenditure and savings identified during the year. 

The company’s liquidity ratio was met. 

$1,300,000 was paid in dividends during this quarter. 

 

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any queries. 

 

Yours sincerely 

 

Richard Currey 

Chair 

	
  





 

 

 

NZRS Ltd 

Financial Statements 

For the Quarter Ended 31 December 2015 

 

 

 

  

 

Statement of Financial Performance 

 

 

Balance Sheet 

 

 

Statement of Cash Flows 

 

 

Activity Based Expenditure Report 

 

 

 

 

 







Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance Last Year Budget LY Actual
Cash Flows From Operating Activities Year To Date

Cash Was Provided From:
Registry Fees Received 2,897,717  3,029,686 (131,969) 9,013,870 9,529,774 (515,904)  8,325,586 12,561,057 10,647,837
Other Receipts 78,874  100,687 (21,813) 265,092 297,875 (32,783)  258,749 396,995 303,295

2,976,591  3,130,373 (153,782) 9,278,961 9,827,649 (548,688)  8,584,335 12,958,052 10,951,132

Cash Was Distributed To:
Payments to Suppliers and Employees 1,533,733  1,612,172 (78,439) 4,713,509 4,834,135 (120,626)  4,583,986 6,446,308 6,148,484
Net Taxation Paid (Refunded) - - - - - - - - -
Net Dividend Paid 1,300,000  1,300,000 - 2,870,058 2,870,058 - 2,055,776 4,170,058 2,755,776
Net GST Paid 44,683  310,085 (265,402) 328,594 740,296 (411,702)  185,062 894,611 305,525

2,878,415  3,222,257 (343,842) 7,912,161 8,444,489 (532,328)  6,824,824 11,510,977 9,209,784

Net Cashflows from Operating 98,176  (91,884) 190,060 1,366,800 1,383,160 (16,360)  1,759,511 1,447,075 1,741,348

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Cash was Provided From:
Share Capital - - - - - - - - -

- - - - - - - -
Cash was Distributed To:
Repayment of Redeemable Preference Shares -
Inland Revenue Use of Money Interest - - - - - - - - -

Net Cash flows from Financing - - - - - - - - -

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Cash was Provided From:
Fitout Contribution - - - - - - - - -

Cash was Distributed To:
Purchase of Fixed Assets & Formation Expenses (4,913)  140,588 (145,501) 77,596 374,900 (297,304)  689,596 515,488 899,518

Net Cash flows from Investing Activities 4,913  (140,588) 145,501 (77,596) (374,900) 297,304  (689,596) (515,488) (899,518)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash Held 103,089  (232,472) 335,561 1,289,205 1,008,260 280,945  1,069,915 931,587 841,831
Plus Opening Cash Balance 10,145,170  10,199,785 (54,615) 8,959,053 8,959,053 - 8,099,572 8,959,053 8,099,572

Closing Cash Carried Forward 10,248,258  9,967,313  280,945  10,248,258  9,967,313  280,945  9,169,489  9,890,640  8,941,403  

Closing Cash Comprises
BNZ First Oncall Account 127 - - 127 - - - - -
ASB Bank Cheque Account 860,479  - - 860,479 - - 1,207,616 9,890,640 918,966
ASB Bank Call Account 509,079  - - 509,079 - - 1,276,570 - 1,286,395
Term Deposits 8,895,969  - - 8,895,969 - - 6,703,371 - 6,741,486
ASB Credit Cards (17,395)  - - (17,395) - - (18,068) - (5,444)

Total Cash Held 10,248,258  9,967,313  280,945  10,248,258  9,967,313  280,945  9,169,489  9,890,640  8,941,403  

Plus ASB Credit Cards 17,395  - - 17,395 - - 18,068 - 5,444

Total Cash & Cash Equivalents 10,265,653  9,967,313  280,945  10,265,653  9,967,313  280,945  9,187,557  9,890,640  8,946,847  

NZRS Ltd
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Quarter Ended 31 December 2015

This Quarter Year to Date Full Year



Specific to this Apportionment of Total Specific to this Apportionment of Total
Activity Shared Costs Activity Shared Costs

.NZ
Actual 1,078,193 213,175 1,291,369 3,260,612 660,159 3,920,771 

Budget 1,107,861 236,320 1,344,181 3,345,624 709,015 4,054,639 
Variance 29,668  23,144  52,812  85,012  48,856  133,868  

.NZ Marketing
Actual 102,324 27,542 129,867 375,222 82,140 457,363 

Budget 133,289 27,451 160,740 400,129 77,558 477,687 
Variance 30,965  (91)  30,874  24,907  (4,583)  20,324  

Technical Research
Actual 69,442 34,933 104,376 224,351 105,781 330,132 

Budget 93,622 38,752 132,374 280,867 116,265 397,132 
Variance 24,180  3,819  27,998  56,516  10,484  67,000  

Business Development
Actual 2,835 10,726 13,561 3,807 33,915 37,722 

Budget 1,275 11,425 12,700 3,825 34,276 38,101 
Variance (1,560)  699  (861)  18  361  379  

Total
Actual 1,252,795 286,377 1,539,172 3,863,992 881,996 4,745,988 

Budget 1,336,047 313,948 1,649,995 4,030,445 937,114 4,967,559 
Variance 83,252  27,571  110,823  166,453  55,119  221,571  

This Quarter Year to Date

NZRS Ltd
Activity Based Expenditure Report

For the Quarter Ended 31 December 2015



 

1 | P a g e  

 

 

 

 



 

2 | P a g e  

 

 

 

 

 

 



● 

● 

● 

● 

● 

● 

● 

 



● 

● 

● 

● 

● 

● 

● 

● 

● 

● 

● 



● 

● 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 



Updated as at 18 February 2016

2020 2020 Communications Trust

2TLD Second Level Domain

3TLD Third Level Domain 

ACCC Australian Competition & Consumer Commission

ACTA Anti-Counterfeiting Trade Agreement

ADA Australian Digital Alliance

ANZIAs Australia New Zealand Internet Awards

APEC Asia-Pacific Economic Cooperation

APIA Asia Pacific Internet Association

APNIC Asia Pacific Network Information Center (RIR for the Asia Pacific region)

APRICOT Asia Pacific Regional Internet Conference on Operational Technologies

APTLD
Asia Pacific Top Level Domains Associations (organisation for ccTLD registries in Asia 

Pacific region)

auDA .au Domain Administration Ltd (Australian equivalent of DNCL)

BCOP Best Current Operational Practices

BIM Brief to Incoming Minister

CCANZ Creative Commons Aotearoa New Zealand

ccNSO County Code Names Supporting Organisations

ccTLD Country Code Top Level Domain (such as .nz for New Zealand, .uk for United Kingdom)

CCWG-

Accountability
Cross Community Working Group on Enhancing ICANN Accountability 

CDMA Code Division Multiple Access (server) (a means to transmit bits of information)

CERT Computer Emergency Reponse Team

CFH Crown Fibre Holdings

CIRA Canadian Internet Registry Authority (operators of the .ca ccTLD)

CSIRT Computer Security Incident Response Team

DHB District Health Boards

DIDO Distributed-Input Distributed-Output (wireless protocol system)

DNCL Domain Name Commission Limited

DNS Domain Name System

DNSSEC DNS Security (adds security to the Domain Name System)

DSLAM Digital Subscriber Line Access Multiplier

DRS Dispute Resolution Service

FTTH Fibre To The Home

GAC Government Advisory Committee

Glossary of Terminology

Page 1 of 3



Updated as at 18 February 2016

Glossary of Terminology

GCSN Greater Christchurch Schools Network Trust

GNSO Generic Name Supporting Organisation (makes recommendations re gTLD to ICANN)

gTLD Generic Top Level Domain (such as .com / .edu)

HDC Harmful Digital Communications

IANA Internet Assigned Numbers Authority

ICANN Internet Corporation for Assigned Names and Numbers

ICG IANA Stewardship Transition Coordination Group

ICT Information and Communications Technologies

IGF Internet Governance Forum

ISOC Internet Society

ISPANZ Internet Service Provider Association of New Zealand

ITAC Internet Technical Advisory Committee

ITU International Telecommunications Union

ITR International Telecommunications Regulations

LFC Local Fibre Company

MAG Multistakeholder Advisory Group

MBIE Ministry of Business, Innovation and Employment

MTR Mobile Termination Rates

NCSG Non-Commercial Stakeholders Group (committee under ICANN’s GNSO)

NH NetHui

NTIA
U.S. Commerce Department’s National Telecommunications and Information 

Administration

NZIRF New Zealand Internet Research Forum

NZITF New Zealand Internet Task Force 

NZNOG New Zealand Network Operators Group

OECD Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development

OFDM Optical Frequency Division Multiplexing

PAG Policy Advisory Group

PCBU Person Conducting a Business or Undertaking

PBE Public Benefit Entity

PIP Pacific Internet Partners (group revived by Keith to help IGF)

RBI Rural Broadband Initiative

RIR Regional Internet Registry

SDN Software-defined Networking

STD Standard Terms Determination

Page 2 of 3



Updated as at 18 February 2016

Glossary of Terminology

TCF Telecommunications Carriers’ Forum

TLD Top Level Domain

TPP Trans-Pacific Partnership

TPPA Trans-Pacific Partnership Agreeement

TSO Telecommunications Services Obligation

TUANZ Telecommunications Users Association of New Zealand

UBA Unbundled Bitstream Access

UCLL Unbundled Copper Local Loop

UFB Ultra Fast Broadband

WSA Wholesale Services Agreement

WSIS World Summit on the Information Society

W3C World Wide Web Consortium

Page 3 of 3


	2016 February Council Paper set.pdf
	00 2016-02-26-DRAFT-Agenda-Council-meeting
	1.4 Councillors' Declaration  of Interest - Feb 2016 (final)
	1.5 2015-12-11-InternetNZ-Council-minutes (to be ratified)
	1.5 2015-12-11-InternetNZ-Council-minutes (to be ratified)
	BLANK PAGE Portrait (for Council papers)

	1.6 2016-02-26-Action-Point-Register
	1.6 2016-02-26-Action-Point-Register
	BLANK PAGE Landscape (for Council papers)

	1.7 2016-02 Membership report (final)
	1.7 2016-02 Membership report (final)
	BLANK PAGE Portrait (for Council papers)

	1.8 Evote ratification - Feb2015 meeting (final)
	1.8 Evote ratification - Feb2015 meeting (final)
	BLANK PAGE Portrait (for Council papers)

	2.2a 2016-02-16 Council Paper - Focus Area Feedback
	2.2b 2016-February-Member-Meetups
	2.3 2016-02-Product-Service-Devt-next-steps-FINAL
	2.4 2016-02-Balance-Sheet-Strategy-discussion
	3.1 2016-02-DID-Document-Information-Disclosure
	3.1 2016-02-DID-Document-Information-Disclosure
	BLANK PAGE Portrait (for Council papers)

	4.1 2016-02-16 Council Paper - Other 2016 Activity Plan Items
	4.2 2016-02-CEO-Report-FINAL
	4.3.1 2016-02-16 Internet Issues Report - February 2016 Council
	4.3.2a 2016-02-Community-Programme-Management-Report-February2016Council-FINAL
	4.3.2b Grants-reporting-spreadsheet-(for-attachment-in-Mgmt-report)
	4.3.2b Grants-reporting-spreadsheet-(for-attachment-in-Mgmt-report)
	BLANK PAGE Landscape (for Council papers)

	4.3.3 2016-02 International Programme report
	4.3.4 Operations Team Management report Feb16
	4.4 INZ Dec 2015 Quarterly Consolidation
	4.4 INZ Dec 2015 Quarterly Consolidation
	BLANK PAGE Portrait (for Council papers)

	5.2a 2016-02-Travel-WG
	5.2a 2016-02-Travel-WG
	BLANK PAGE Portrait (for Council papers)

	5.2b InternationalTravelPolicyGuidelines2016-2
	5.2b InternationalTravelPolicyGuidelines2016-2
	BLANK PAGE Portrait (for Council papers)

	5.2c 2016-01-ClassofTravelReviewTermsofReference
	5.3a 2016-02-Appointments-Process-FINAL
	5.3.3 2016-02-Appointments-Process-FINAL
	BLANK PAGE Portrait (for Council papers)

	5.3b Joint.nz-report-2015-16Q3-Final
	5.4a DNCL 3rd quarter report and financials 2015-16
	5.4b DNCL Statement of Directions and Goals 16-17
	5.4b DNCL Statement of Directions and Goals 16-17
	BLANK PAGE Portrait (for Council papers)

	5.5a 2015-16-NZRS-3rdQuarterReport-to-INZ
	8.2 NZRS 2015-16 3rd Qtr Report DRAFT - JD
	6.5.5 December 2015 Quarterly Reports(2)

	6.1.1a Draft A&R minutes - 21 January 2016 (revised 26.1.15)
	6.1.3 2016-02-Maori-Engagement-update
	6.1.3 2016-02-Maori-Engagement-update
	BLANK PAGE Portrait (for Council papers)

	6.1.4-2016-02-Membership-Cmte-update
	6.1.4-2016-02-Membership-Cmte-update
	BLANK PAGE Portrait (for Council papers)


	InternetNZ - List of Acronyms

